CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY,

FRESNO FOUNDATION

ANNUAL REPORT

201718




CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FRESNO FOUNDATION
ANNUAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Corporate Information

Independent Auditors’ Report

Statements of Financial Position

Statements of Activities

Statements of Cash Flows /

Notes to the Financial Statements

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Combining Statement of California Department of Education Activities

General Fund Administration Cost Center

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on

Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal
Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Additional Information Restated for California State University Reporting

Page
Number

1-3

30-36
37
38

39-40

41-42

43 - 44
45

46 - 51



California State University Fresno, Foundation
Corporate Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

BOARD OF GOVERNORS:

Mr. Darius Assemi

Dr. Joseph I. Castro
Ms. Carol Chandler
Mr. Nat DiBuduo

Ms. Octavia Diener
Ms. Joan Eaton

Dr. Eric Hanson

Mr. John E. Horstmann
Mzr. Larry Johanson
Ms. Maurine Jones

Mr. Hal Kissler

Hon. Annette LaRue
Mr. Claude C. Laval III
Dr. William M. Lyles
Mr. Jay Mabhil

Mr. Chris Morse

Ms. Debra Nalchajian-Cohen
Mr. Ken Newby

Hon. Robert H. Oliver
Dr. Joan Otomo-Corgel
Mr. Dennis Parnagian
Ms. Vinci Ricchiuti
Ms. Yrma Rico

Ms. Kim Ruiz-Beck
Mr. Mark Ruof

Ms. Lorraine Salazar
Mr. Bill Shaughnessy
Mr. Bill Smittcamp
Mr. George Soares

Mr. Richard F. Spencer
Mr. Ray Steele, Jr.

Mr. Kyle Stephenson
Mr. Kevin Sweeney
Ms. Dora Westerlund
Dr. Rick Whitten

Mr. A. Emory Wishon III

CORPORATE OFFICERS:

Ms. Vincei Ricchiuti
Dr. Eric Hanson

Ms. Octavia Diener
Dr. Joseph 1. Castro

EXECUTIVE STAFF:
Ms. Debbie Astone
Mr. Keith Kompsi
Ms. Rina Gonzales

Executive Committee:
Ms. Vinci Ricchiuti

Dr. Eric Hanson

Ms. Octavia Diener

Dr. Joseph I. Castro

Mr. Ray Steele, Jr.

Mr. Kyle Stephenson

Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Selma, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Madera, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Manbhattan Beach, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Dinuba, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Atherton, California
Clovis, California
Sacramento, California
Fresno, California
Clovis, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California
Fresno, California

Chair
Vice Chair
Treasurer
Secretary

Executive Director
Director of Foundation Financial Services
Staff Counsel

Chair

Vice Chair

Treasurer

Secretary

Immediate Past Chair
Member at Large



California State University Fresno, Foundation
Corporate Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Audit Committee:
Mr. Kyle Stephenson
Ms. Carol Chandler
Ms. Joan Eaton

Hon. Annette LaRue
Mr. Chris Morse

Mr. Ken Newby
Hon. Robert Oliver

Budget Committee
Mr. Ray Steele, Jr.
Mr. Larry Johanson
Mr. Claude Laval ITI
Mr. Dennis Parnagian
Ms. Yrma Rico

Mr. George Soares
Dr. Rick Whitten

Development Committee
Ms. Debra Nalchajian-Cohen
Mr. Nat DiBuduo

Ms. Maurine Jones

Mr. Jay Mabhil

Mzr. Chris Morse

Dr. Joan Otomo-Corgel

Ms. Kim Ruiz-Beck

Ms. Lorraine Salazar

Mr. Bill Smittcamp

Ms. Dora Westerlund

Governance Committee
Ms. Octavia Diener

Dr. Eric Hanson

Mr. John Horstmann

Mr. Claude Laval IIT

Mr. Ken Newby

Hon. Robert Oliver

Investment Committee
Mr. A. Emory Wishon III
Mr. Darius Assemi

Mr. Hal Kissler

Mr. William M. Lyles

Mr. Mark Ruof

Mr. Bill Shaughnessy

Mr. Richard Spencer

Mr. Ray Steele, Jr.

Chair

Chair

Chair

Chair

Chair



California State University Fresno, Foundation

Corporate Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

CORPORATE DATA

Executive Offices

Auditors

Investment Advisors

4910 N. Chestnut Ave
Fresno, CA 93726-1852
Telephone: (559) 278-0850

Moore Grider & Company
Certified Public Accountants
325 E. Sierra Ave.

Fresno, CA 93710-3707
Telephone: (559) 440-0700

Goldman Sachs

555 California St.

45t Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104
Telephone: (415) 393-7500



A Partnership Including
Accountancy Corporations
and a Partnership

Richard L. Holland, C.PA.
Thomas L. Bell, C.PA.

Accountancy Corporation
Denise S. Hurst, CPA.

Kenneth J. Labendeira, C.PA., C.EE.

Accountancy Corporation

Pamela J. Gallemore, C.RA.

Accountancy Corporation

Karl L. Noyes, C.PA.

Accountancy Corporation
Cory J. Bell, C.PA.
Kendall K. Wheeler, C.PA.

Tom Collins, C.PA.
Accountancy Corporation

Aaron C. Studt, C.RA.
Carrie M. Wiebe, C.RA., C.EE.

Accountancy Corporation

Lozano, Lozano & Company
Accountancy Partnership with partners:

Phil A. Lozano, C.PA.

Ginger A. Lozano, CPA.

Kelli D. Steele, C.PA.
Julie B. Fillmore, C.PA.
Oscar Espinoza, CPA
Lisa Brown, C.PA., C.EE.
Stalin Hernandez, C.PA.
Michiko Rosenthal, C.PA.

Abel M. Cabello, E.A.

L. Jerome Moore, C.PA.
1923-2016

Robert E. Grider, C.PA.
Retired

Moore Grider & Company

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Governors
California State University, Fresno Foundation
Fresno, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of California State University,
Fresno Foundation, which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30,
2017 and 2018, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
4
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of California State University, Fresno Foundation as of June
30, 2017 and 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. On pages 30 to 36, the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information on pages 37 - 38 is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is also not a required part of the financial
statements. The information reflected on pages 46 to 51 is presented as required by the
Chancellor of the California State University. Such information and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 19, 2018, on our consideration of California State University, Fresno
Foundation’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the effectiveness of California State University, Fresno Foundation’s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering California
State University, Fresno Foundation’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

%ﬂc M W W
Fresno, California
September 19, 2018




CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FRESNO FOUNDATION
THE CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY AUXILIARY ORGANIZATION

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT JUNE 302017 AND 2018

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1, Pg. 9)

Receivables:
Grants and contracts
Pledges receivable (Note 2)
Other accounts receivable
Notes receivable, net (Note 3)
Total Receivables

Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets
Long-term investments, at market (Note 4)

Non-current receivables:
Pledges receivable (Note 2)
Allowance for uncollectibles
Net pledges receivable
Notes receivable, net (Note 3)
Total non-current receivables

Land and improvements

Capital Assets:
Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Net Capital Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities: ‘
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits payable
Receipts in excess of expenditures
on specific sponsored programs
Accrued compensated balances
Unitrust agreement liabilities - current portion (Note 8)
Annuity agreement liabilities - current portion (Note 8)
Total Current Liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Accounts payable
Notes payable (Note 9)
Annuity agreement ligbilities - long-term portion (Note 8)
Agency accounts
Total Liabilities

Net Assets:
Unrestricted (deficit)
Unrestricted-board designated reserves (Note 10)
Temporarily restricted (Note 11)
Permanently restricted (Note 12)
Total Net Assets
TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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2017 2018
TOTAL TOTAL

$ 39,021,839 $ 42,577,718

7,958,971 8,973,709

1,241,073 1,801,084

7,779,360 8,412,763

30,127 5,322

17,009,531 19,192,878

93,255 93,508

56,124,625 61,864,104

135,148,522 143,903,274

4,505,247 3,570,038
(180,000) (180,000)

4,325,247 3,390,038

319,660 355,140

4,644,907 3,745,178

520,563 454,658

595,814 602,391
(516,202) (543,233)

79,612 59,158

§ 196,518,229 § 210,026,372

$ 2,480,986 § 2,064,494

1,065,416 1,162,935

3,141,777 4,830,973

69,985 67,984

30,540 31,457

31,547 34,114

6,820,251 8,191,957

680,710 700,939

2,000,000 2,000,000

202,228 168,104

2,547,779 2,741,053

12,250,968 13,802,053
(2,006,400) (105,430)

3,224,933 2,855,162

75,864,219 78,474,053

107,184,509 115,000,535

184,267,261 196,224,320

$ 196,518,229 § 210,026,372




CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FRESNO FOUNDATION
THE CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY AUXILIARY ORGANIZATION
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2018

2017 2018
TOTAL TOTAL
Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets:
Revenues, Gains and Other Support:
Federal grants and contracts $ 21,937,945 § 21,700,934
State grants and contracts 8,350,262 8,087,564
Other grants and contracts 3,498,139 3,834,588
Indirect cost recovery from sponsored programs 3,092,967 3,058,042
Handling fees 294,964 288,428
Investment income 3,284,367 2,459,590
Realized/unrealized gains (losses) 2,323,181 344,943
Endowment administrative fees 1,561,000 1,561,000
Income for campus support 8,649,810 8,486,419
Other 52,229 1,052
Net assets released from restrictions:
expiration of donor-imposed restrictions (Note 11) 14,796,953 15,778,694
Total Unrestricted Revenues, Gains and Other Support 67,841,816 65,601,254
Expenses and Losses:
Instruction 11,353,202 10,100,084
Public service 16,621,641 16,978,834
Research ) 5,811,503 6,544,169
Special Programs 2,567,018 2,962,026
Campus Support 15,951,419 16,252,312
Student grants and scholarships 3,825,223 4,024,760
Management and general (Note 7) 3,280,835 3,496,871
Endowment administrative fees 1,561,000 1,561,000
Donations to agency accounts (surplus allocation) 2,150,000 2,150,000
Total Expenses and Losses (Note 15) 63,121,842 64,070,056
Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets 4,719,974 1,531,198
Changes in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets:
Gain (loss) on investments:
Realized $ (150,327) $ 1,377,900
Unrealized 4,577,850 (1,415,390)
Investment income 5,768,219 8,857,813
Contributions - Net 5,071,971 7,011,103
Non-operating expense 1,702,227 2,557,102
Net assets released from restrictions (Note 11) (14,796,953) (15,778,694)
Changes in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 2,172,987 2,609,834
Changes in Permanently Restricted Net Assets:
Contributions 915,968 6,815,739
Gain on sale of land 0 1,001,204
Change in value of split interest agreements (Note 8) 1,068 917)
Changes in Permanently Restricted Net Assets 917,036 7,816,026
Total Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 7,809,997 11,957,059
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 176,457,264 184,267,261
Net Assets at End of Year $ 184,267,261 $ 196,224,320

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FRESNO FOUNDATION
THE CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY AUXILIARY ORGANIZATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase (decrease) in net assets to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities: '
Depreciation
Bad debt expense
Forgiveness of notes receivable
Contributions restricted for long-term investment
Transfers to campus programs
Net realized and unrealized (gains) and losses on investments
Changes in value of split interest agreements
Gain on sale of land
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Grants, contracts and accounts receivable
Pledges receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued compensated balances
Receipts in excess of expenditures
Agency accounts
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Increase in notes receivable
Payments received on notes receivable
Acquisition of capital assets
Proceeds from sales of capital assets
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Contributions restricted for long-term investment
Payments on split interest agreements
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash at beginning of year
Cash at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest

2017 2018
TOTAL TOTAL
$ 7,809,997 $ 11,957,059
39,708 27,031
150,000 383,655
36,055 5,000
(965,549) (6,939,829)
1,300,000 300,000
(10,713,567) (7,264,514)
49,338 48,959
0 (1,001,204)
113,605 (1,648,140)
(17,909) (8,457)
(34,054) (252)
1,393,451 (396,262)
85,717 97,519
5,100 (2,001)
(139,452) 1,689,196
329,339 193,274
(558,221) (2,558,966)
(4,572,657) (9,394,110)
7,119,639 7,603,868
(122,466) (63,126)
25,078 47,451
(28,151) (6,577)
0 1,067,109
2,421,443 (745,385)
965,549 6,939,829
(79,599) (79,599)
885,950 6,860,231
2,749,172 3,555,880
36,272,667 39,021,839
$ 39,021,839 § 42,577,719
$ 30,000 $ 20,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

8




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FRESNO FOUNDATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 AND 2018

Note 1 — Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

The California State University, Fresno Foundation (the “Foundation”) was incorporated on June 19, 1931.
It is a recognized auxiliary of the California State University and is organized and operated exclusively for
educational purposes as a tax-exempt organization under the provisions of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code and section 23701(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. The Foundation was
formed and is operated exclusively to receive, hold, invest, and administer property and to make expenditures
to or for the benefit of California State University, Fresno (the “University”). The Foundation is supported
primarily by revenues generated from the recovery of indirect costs from federal, state and other grants, fees
on gifts, donations and other sources and investment earnings.

The financial statements include the accounts of the Foundation and its wholly owned subsidiary, New
California Ventures, LLC (the “LLC”), which is a single member limited liability company. The Foundation
provided the initial capital contribution when the LLC was formed in 2012. The LLC provides services in
exchange for an equity interest in start-up or existing companies, and supports the commercialization of
research initiatives connected to the University. The net assets of the LLC are considered to be temporarily
restricted as the funds are not available for the general operations of the Foundation.

Basis of Accounting

The Foundation maintains its accounting records and prepares its financial statements on the accrual basis of
accounting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation is in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for not-for-
profit organizations. Under this guidance, the Foundation is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily
restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash held in banks and unrestricted highly liquid investments. The
Foundation maintains all of its cash and cash equivalents in accounts held with a large national bank
($3,281,180 and $3,236,307 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively), in the State of
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) ($6,899 and $6,981 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and
2018, respectively), and within a balanced investment portfolio with Goldman Sachs ($35,733,760 and
$39,334,431 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively).

The Federal Depository Insurance Corporation insures cash balances held in banks up to $250,000. At June
30, 2017 and 2018 the Foundation’s uninsured cash balances held in banks totaled $4,827,715 and
$4,018,814, respectively. Management believes that the Foundation’s diversification of cash deposits,
combined with prudent business practices help assure that, in accordance with 45 Code of Federal
Regulations, Part 74.21(b)(3), any Federal deposits in excess of insurance or collateralization are adequately
safeguarded.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at unpaid balances. Receivables are considered impaired if full principal
payments are not received in accordance with the contractual terms. It is the Foundation’s policy to write off
uncollectible accounts receivable when management determines the receivable will not be collected. The
Foundation maintains a Reserve for Contingency — Sponsored Programs against which such write-offs can
oceur.

Investments

Investments are primarily held in mutual funds, equity securities, hedge funds, and U.S. treasury securities
and are reported at fair value based upon quoted market price. Any temporary difference between cost and
fair value of an investment is presented as a separate component of change in net assets. The specific
identification method is used to determine realized gains and losses on investments.

The Foundation maintains master investment accounts for its donor-restricted and board-designated
endowments. Realized and unrealized gains and losses from investments in the master accounts are allocated
annually to the individual endowments based on the relationship of the market value of each endowment to
the total market value of the master investment accounts, as adjusted for additions to or deductions from
those accounts.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are reflected on the financial statements at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-
line method based upon estimated useful lives of three to ten years. The Foundation capitalizes all
expenditures in excess of $5,000 for property and equipment at cost.

Indirect Cost Rate

The Foundation provides accounting and administrative services for grants and contracts entered into by the
Foundation on behalf of the University. In many cases, these agreements provide for the reimbursement of
indirect costs based on a percentage of the direct costs of the grants and contracts.

The University and the Foundation make every attempt to obtain from the granting agencies the federally
approved maximum indirect cost reimbursement rate of 40.0% of the total direct costs of the grant and
contract agreements. However, few grant and contract agreements allow for the maximum federal rate. The
Foundation’s actual average indirect cost reimbursement rate for grants and contracts was 9.2% and 9.1% for
the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, respectively.

Donor Imposed Restrictions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.
Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for specific purposes are
reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted donations. Realized and unrealized gains (losses)
from securities transactions in the Endowment Fund are recognized as temporarily restricted for those
purposes specified by the donors for income from the endowed gift. The Foundation collects reasonable
administrative fees on contributions as applicable law permits. Donors have the option for exemption from
or reduction of the administrative fees and the Foundation has complied with any request from donors to
exercise these options. The Foundation Board of Governors votes annually on the amount of the endowment
administrative fees. Currently the administrative fees cannot exceed 2.5% of the fair market value of the
funds at June 30 of each year.

10



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pledges Receivable

Unconditional pledges receivable from donors that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded
at net realizable value. Long-term pledges receivable that are expected to be collected in a period beyond
one year are recorded at a discount using the present value of their estimated future cash flows. The discounts
on long-term pledges receivable are computed using risk-free interest rates applicable to the period in which
the pledges to give are received. Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue.
Conditional promises to give are not included as support until the conditions are substantially met.
Management has determined that an allowance of $180,000 for both 2017 and 2018 for uncollectible pledges
receivable is sufficient based on historical levels of write offs.

Contributed Property and Equipment

Donated property and equipment are recorded at fair market value at the date of donation. If donors stipulate
how long the assets must be used or how the proceeds from the sale of the property or equipment are to be
used, the donations are recorded as restricted contributions. In the absence of such stipulations, donations of
property and equipment are recorded as unrestricted contributions.

Income Taxes

The Foundation is incorporated as a non-profit California corporation and is exempt from income taxes under
Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 23701d.

New California Ventures, LLC is a California limited liability company whose sole member is the
Foundation. The LLC is a disregarded entity for federal income tax purposes and thus not subject to federal
income tax. For California tax purposes, the LLC is subject to an annual tax and LLC fee.

The Foundation classifies interest and penalties on tax assessments as an expense when incurred. For the
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018, interest and penalties totaled $0.

Reclassifications

Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to
conform with the presentation in the current-year financial statements. The reclassification had no impact
on previously-reported increase in net assets or cash flow information.

11



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 — Pledges Receivable
At June 30, 2017 and 2018, pledges receivable includes the following unconditional pledges to give:

Pledges Receivable 2017 2018

Unconditional pledges to give before unamortized discount and $ 7,359,838 $ 7,533,158
allowance for uncollectible pledges

Less: Unamortized discount (1,613,518) (2,162,036)
Subtotal 5,746,320 5,371,122
Less: Allowance for uncollectible pledges (180,000) (180,000)
Net unconditional pledges to give $ 5566320 $ 5,191,122
Current portion $§ 1241073 § 1,801,084
Long term portion § 4505247 § 3,570,038
Amounts due in:
Less than one year $ 1,327,948 $§ 1,927,160
One to five years 5,938,687 1,559,682
More than five years 93,203 4,046,316
Total $§ 7359838 $ 7,533,158

The average discount rate used to calculate the present value of promises to give expected to be collected in
periods beyond one year was 7% for both fiscal years 2017 and 2018. Pledges receivable are considered a
nonrecurring Level 3 asset under the fair value hierarchy established by ASC 820. For pledges receivable
that are due within one year, carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. For pledges receivable
that are due in more than one year, fair value is estimated at the present value of estimated future cash flows,
using a 7% discount rate.

‘ Pledges receivable activity are

| as follows:

Beginning of year balance $ 7430365 $ 7,359,838
New pledges 1,787,000 2,217,655
Pledge payments received (1,707,527) (1,660,680)
Write-offs (150,000) (383,655)
End of year balance $ 7,359,838 § 7,533,158

Note 3 — Notes Receivable

The Foundation maintains a Student Loan Fund that allows students to borrow funds as approved by the
University’s Office of Financial Aid. The Foundation did not write off any uncollectable student loans for
both fiscal years 2017 and 2018. Management believes the current reserve level is adequate for future
uncollectible student loans. Certain loan programs allow students to have their loans forgiven if they perform
either a service learning or governmental service program. Student loans forgiven for the years ended June
30, 2017 and 2018 totaled $36,055 and $5,000, respectively.

12



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes receivable for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 are as follows:

Note Receivable (Interest Rate) 2017 2018

Student loans (1% - 12%) $ 352287 $ 362,962

Less allowance for uncollectible

student loans (2,500) (2,500)

Net notes receivable $ 349,787 $ 360,462
Current portion $ 30,127  $ 5,322
Long term portion $ 319,660 $ 355,140

Note 4 — Long-Term Investments

Generally accepted accounting principles require the Foundation to report investments in securities at fair
value and to recognize and report realized and unrealized gains or losses in the statements of activities.

Unrealized gains or losses occur when the fair value of investments increases or decreases as of June 30t
each year. Realized gains or losses occur when an investment is sold. However, the amount of the realized
gain or loss reflected on the statements of activities should not include any unrealized gain or loss recognized
in prior years. With the large number of securities comprising long-term investments, it is impractical for
the Foundation to determine the amount of unrealized gain or loss previously recognized on securities sold
during the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018. Recognizing realized gains (losses) and the unrealized gains
(losses) in the current period does properly account for the required adjustment to reflect investments at fair
value as of June 30, 2017 and 2018.

Long-term investment activity at fair value for the year ended June 30, 2017 is as follows:

Long-term investments Total
Long-term investments at beginning of year $ 128,281,937
Additions 1,178,090
Amounts withdrawn for scholarships and donor restricted purposes (7,119,639)
Return on investments: .
Dividends and interest (net of investment fees of $557,469) 2,094,567
Realized gains 3,212,866
Unrealized gains 7,500,701
Total return on investments 12,808,134
Long-term investments at end of year $ 135,148,522
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Long-term investment activity at fair value for the year ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

i Long-term investments Total
Long-term investments at beginning of year $ 135,148,522
Additions 6,946,114
Amounts withdrawn for scholarships and donor restricted purposes (7,603,868)
Return on investments:

Dividends and interest (net of investment fees of $518,842) 2,147,992
Realized gains 5,216,896
Unrealized gains 2,047,618
Total return on investments 9,412,506
Long-term investments at end of year $ 143,903,274

Long-term investments at fair value consist of the following:

Long-term investments 2017 2018 ‘
Corporate bonds $ 4,588,889 $ 5,886,175
Mutual funds 60,162,405 67,122,701
Money Market funds 243,842 1,403,164
Mortgage backed securities 4,550,210 5,312,861
Municipal bonds 422,155 392,205
US agency securities - 255,251 286,200
U.S. treasury securities 10,725,760 11,484,822
Equity securities 23,773,195 15,394,423
Alternative investments:
Private equity 7,720,664 13,115,496
Hedge funds 18,348,568 19,400,927
Real estate investments 3,731,673 3,180,693
Other alternative investment types 52,161 52,580
Life income contracts 370,560 361,800
Investment in LLC 203,189 509,227
Total long-term investments, at market § 135,148,522 $  143.903,274

Note 5 — Fair Value Measurements

Generally accepted accounting principles establishes a framework for measuring fair value. FASB ASC 820
applies to all financial statements that are being measured and reported on a fair value basis.

FASB ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. FASB ASC 820
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
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liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant observable
inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets. Valuations are
obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1 that are observable, either directly or
indirectly. Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.
Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Inputs are unobservable. Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other
valuation methodologies, including option pricing models, discounts cash flow models and similar
techniques, and not based on market exchange, dealer, or broker traded transactions. Level 3
valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to
such assets or liabilities.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

As a practical expedient, the Foundation is permitted under GAAP to estimate the fair value of an investment
at the measurement date using the reported net asset value (NAV) without further adjustment unless the entity
expects to sell the investment at a value other than NAV or the NAYV is not calculated in accordance with
GAAP. The Foundation’s investments in certain private equity and hedge funds in the alternative investment
portfolio are generally valued based on the most current NAV received. This amount represents fair value
of these investments at June 30, 2017 and 2018.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used to measure fair value. There have been no
changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2017 and 2018.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Corporate Bonds, Mutual Funds, Money Market Funds, Mortgage Backed
Securities, Municipal Bonds, U.S. Agency Securities, U.S. Treasury Securities, and Equity Securities are
valued at the closing price reported on the active or observable market on which the individual securities are
traded.

Alternative Investments are valued based on the net asset values provided by the fund manager and other
market factors. Other factors include, but are not limited to, estimates of liquidation value, prices of recent
transactions in the same or similar funds, current performance, future expectations of the particular
investment, and changes in market outlook and the financing environment.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable
value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Foundation believes its valuation methods
are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or
assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value
measurement at the reporting date.

15



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The table below presents the level within the fair value hierarchy at which investments are measured on a
recurring basis at June 30, 2017:

Recurring Level 2 Level 3 Net Asset

Value (NAYV)

Short-term investments:*
State of California Local
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) §$ 6,899 $ 6,899 § 0 3 0 3 0
Corporate bonds 1,520,210 1,520,210 0 0 0
Mutual funds v 20,660,025 20,660,025 0 0 0
Money market funds 16,008 16,008 0 0 0
Mortgage backed securities 1,485,716 1,485,716 0 0 0
U.S. agency securities 81,680 81,680
U.S. tfeasury securities 3,624,836 3,624,836 0 0 0
Equity securities 3,742,009 3,742,009 0 0 0
Alternative investments:
Hedge funds 3,621,377 0 0 3,621,377
Real estate investments 981,899 981,899 0 0 0
Total short-term investments 35,740,659 32,119,282 0 0 3,621,377 '
Long-term investments:
Corporate bonds $ 4,588,889 $ 4,588,889 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Mutual funds 60,162,405 60,162,405 0 0 0
Money market funds 243,842 243,842 0 0 0
Mortgage backed securities 4,550,210 4,550,210 0 0 0
Municipal bonds 422,155 422,155 0 0 0
U.S. agency securities 255,251 255,251 0 0 0
U.S. treasury securities 10,725,760 10,725,760 0 0 0
Equity securities 23,773,195 23,773,195 0 0 0
Alternative investments:
Private equity 7,720,664 0- 0 0 7,720,664
Hedge funds 18,348,568 0 0 0 18,348,568 |-
Real estate investments 3,731,673 3,731,673 0 0 0
Other alternative 52,161 52,161 0 0 0
Life income contracts 370,560 327,810 0 42,750 0
Investment in LLC 203,189 153,189 0 50,000 0
Total long-term investments, at
market 135,148,522 108,986,540 0 92,750 26,069,232
Total $ 170,889,181 $ 141,105,822 § 0 $§ 92750 $ 29,690.609

* Amounts included in cash and cash equivalents on the Statements of Financial Position.
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The table below presents the level within the fair value hierarchy at which investments are measured on a

recurring basis at June 30, 2018:

Recurring Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Net Asset
Value (NAV)
Short-term investments:*
State of California Local
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) $ 6,981 $ 6,981 § 0 $ 0 3 0
Corporate bonds 2,139,023 2,139,023 0 0 0
Mutual funds 22,568,142 22,568,142 0 0 0
Money market funds 94,774 94,774 0 0 0
Mortgage backed securities 1,967,330 1,967,330 0 0 0
U.S. agency securities 108,211 108,211
U.S. treasury securities 4,276,518 4,276,518 0 0 0
Equity securities 3,429,748 3,429,748 0 0 0
Alternative investments:
Hedge funds 3,829,077 0 0 0 3,829,077
Real estate investments 921,608 921,608 0 0 0
Total short-term investments 39,341,412 35,512,335 0 0 3,829,077
Long-term investments:
Corporate bonds $ 5,886,175 § 5,886,175 $ 0 $ 0 3 0
Mutual funds 67,122,701 67,122,701 0 0 0
Money market funds 1,403,164 1,403,164 0 0 0
Mortgage backed securities 5,312,861 5,312,861 _ 0 0 0
Municipal bonds 392,205 392,205 0 0 0}
U.S. agency securities 286,200 286,200 0 0 0
U.S. treasury securities ' 11,484,822 11,484,822 0 0 0
Equity securities 15,394,423 15,394,423 0 0 0
Alternative investments:
Private equity - 13,115,496 0 0 0 13,115,496
Hedge funds 19,400,927 0 0 0 19,400,927
Real estate investments 3,180,693 3,180,693 0 0 0
Other alternative 52,580 52,580 0 0 0
Life income contracts 361,800 320,900 0 40,900 0
Investment in LLC 509,227 285,078 0 224,149 0
Total long-term investments, at
market 143,903,274 111,121,802 0 . 265,049 32,516,423
Total $ 183244686 §146,634,137 $ 0 $ 265049 § 36,345,500

* Amounts included in cash and cash equivalents on the Statements of Financial Position.

17




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following schedule shows changes in Level 3 Assets for the years ending June 30, 2017 and 2018:

2017 2018
Level 3 Assets at beginning of year $ 42,750 $ 92,750
Transfer in (out) of Level 3 0 0
Purchases 50,000 180,000
Unrealized losses 0 (7,701)
Level 3 Assets at the end of the year $ 92,750 § 265,049

Note 6 — Endowment

Effective July 1, 2008, the Foundation adopted the provisions established by accounting literature for
Endowments of Not-for-Profit Foundations: Net Asset Classification of Funds Subject to an Enacted Version
of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act, and Enhanced Disclosures for All
Endowment Funds. The accounting literature provides guidance on the net asset classification of donor
restricted endowment funds for a not-for-profit Foundation that is subject to an enacted version of the
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act of 2006 (UPMIFA) and also requires disclosures
about endowment funds, both donor restricted endowment funds and board-designated endowment funds,

The Foundation’s endowment consists of approximately 739 individual funds established for a variety of
purposes. Its endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board
of Governors to function as endowments. As required by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds,
including funds designated by the Board of Governors to function as endowments, are classified and reported
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Board of Governors of the Foundation has interpreted the California Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the
gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a
result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value
of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent
endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of
the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted
net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure
by the Foundation in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In
accordance with UPMIFA, the Foundation considers the following factors in making a determination to
appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund

(2) The purposes of the Foundation and the donor-restricted endowment fund
(3) General economic conditions

(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation

(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
(6) Other resources of the Foundation _

(7) The investment policies of the Foundation
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Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund

Endowment net assets consist of the following at June 30, 2017:

Temporarily  Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Donor-restricted endowment funds $ (4,228,874) $ 35,798,915 $105,759,712 $ 137,329,753
Board-designated endowment funds 0 0 0 0
Total endowed net assets $ (4228,874) $ 35798915 $ 105,759,712 § 137,329,753

Endowment net assets consist of the following at June 30, 2018:

Temporarily  Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted

Donor-restricted endowment funds $ (3,883,931) $ 37,018,186 $113,454,844

$ 146,589,099

Board-designated endowment funds 0 0 0 0
Total endowed net assets $§ (3.883.931) § 37,018,186 $ 113,454,844 § 146,589,099

Changes in Endowment Net Assets

The following schedule shows changes in endowment net assets for the year ending June 30, 2017:

Temporarily  Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted

Endowment net assets, July 1, 2016  § (6,552,055) $ 33,757,017 $ 104,930,903

Activity in pooled endowment
assets:

Investment return:

$ 132,135,365

(including pledges receivable).

Investment income 0 8,027,985 0 8,027,985
Net appreciation 0 4,427,524 0 4,427,524
Total investment return 0 12,455,509 0 12,455,509
Contributions * 0 6,000 842,355 848,355
Transfers to campus programs 0 (1,300,000) 0 (1,300,000)
Appropriation of endowment assets
for expenditure 0 (7,111,114) 0 (7,111,114)
Net increase (decrease) in pooled
endowment assets 0 (8,405,114) 842,355 (7,562,759)
Net increase (decrease) in other
endowment net assets * 0 314,684 (13,546) 301,138
Restoration of prior endowment
fund deficiency 2,323,181 (2,323,181) 0 0
Endowment net assets, June 30,
2017 $ (4228874) $ 35798915 § 105,759,712 § 137,329,753

* Note: Some contributions shown within pooled endowment activity relate to other endowment net assets
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The following schedule shows changes in endowment net assets for the year ending June 30, 2018:

Temporarily  Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets, July 1,2017  § (4,228,874) $ 35,798,915 $ 105,759,712 $ 137,329,753
Activity in pooled endowment
assets:
Investment return:
Investment income 0 9,136,103 0 9,136,103
Net appreciation (depreciation) 0 (37,490) 0 (37,490)

Total investment return 0 9,098,613 0 9,098,613
Contributions * 0 61,362 6,694,845 6,756,207
Transfers to campus programs 0 (300,000) 0 (300,000)
Appropriation of endowment assets

for expenditure 0 (7,509,405) 0 (7,509,405)
Net increase (decrease) in pooled

endowment assets 0 (7,748,043) 6,694,845 (1,053,198)
Net increase (decrease) in other

endowment net assets * 0 213,644 917) 212,727
Gain on sale of land : 0 0 1,001,204 1,001,204
Restoration of prior endowment

fund deficiency 344,943 (344,943) 0 0
Endowment net assets, June 30,
2018 $ (3.883931) § 37,018,186 § 113,454,844 §$ 146,589,099
* Note: Some contributions shown within pooled endowment activity relate to other endowment net assets
(including pledges receivable).
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Description of Amounts Classified as Permanently Restricted Net Assets and Temporarily Restricted
Net Assets

2017 2018

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

The portion of perpetual endowment funds that is § 105,759,712 $ 113,454,844
required to be retained permanently either by explicit
donor stipulation or by UPMIFA

Total endowment funds classified as permanently
restricted net assets § 105,759,712 § 113,454,844

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Term endowment funds $ 0 3 0

The portion of perpetual endowment funds subject to
a time restriction under UPMIFA:

Without purpose restrictions 0 0
With purpose restrictions 35,798,915 37,018,186

Total endowment funds classified as temporarily
restricted net assets $§ 35798915 $ 37,018,186

Endowment Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted endowment funds may
fall below the level that the donor or UPMIFA requires the Foundation to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration. In accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature that are reported in unrestricted net assets as
of June 30, 2017 and 2018 are $4,228,874 and $3,883,931, respectively. Therefore, the deficiency decreased
during the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 by $2,323,181 and $344,943, respectively. These deficiencies
resulted from unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred shortly after the investment of new permanently
restricted contributions and continued appropriation for certain programs that was deemed prudent by the
Board of Governors.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide
a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the
purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds
that the Foundation must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s) as well as board-designated
funds. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Governors, the endowment assets are invested in a
manner that is intended to produce results consistent with an overall objective of safety of principal combined
with capital appreciation. Since the Foundation has long-term investment goals, some risk of principal is
acceptable to achieve higher overall returns. The investments of the funds, which include equities, should
exceed the rate of inflation by four percent (4%), over full market cycles.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives
To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Foundation relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield

(interest and dividends). The Foundation targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis
on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

21



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy

The Foundation Board each year approves an appropriation for distribution from its endowment to University
programs after considering the analysis and input from its Investment and Budget Committees who, in turn,
consider factors contained within UPMIFA, as well as the needs of University programs that benefit from
the distribution. The distribution is measured as a percentage of its endowment fund’s average fair value
over the prior twelve (12) quarters through the calendar year-end preceding the fiscal year in which the
distribution is planned. In establishing this policy, the Foundation considered the long-term expected return
on its endowment. Accordingly, over the long term, the Foundation expects the current spending policy to
allow its endowment to grow consistent with its return objectives and risk parameters. This is consistent with
the Foundation’s objective to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets held in perpetuity or
for a specified term as well as to provide additional real growth through new gifts and investment return. The
total endowment payout for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 (as a percentage of the endowment’s
average market value for the twelve (12) quarters ending the preceding December 31), was 5.09% and 5.51%,
respectively.

Note 7 — Management Services

The Foundation receives corporate management and financial services from the California State University,
Fresno Association, Inc. (“Association”) through a Management Services Agreement (MSA). The
Foundation’s gross administrative fees paid to the Association for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018
were $711,185 and $722,934, respectively.

The Foundation also reimburses the Association for the salaries and benefits of the Foundation Financial
Services staff. The amount reimbursed for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2018 were $916,111 and
$886,459, respectively. Benefit reimbursement includes current year defined benefit pension contributions
and retired employees’ health benefit payments for persons employed by the Association but performing
services for the Foundation. The disclosures relating to these plans are not considered significant to the
Foundation’s financial statements.

The above amounts are included in management and general expenses on the Statements of Activities.

Note 8 — Unitrust and Annuity Agreement Liabilities

Unitrust Agreement consists of the following:

Unitrust Agreement No. 2

On June 15, 1998, a unitrust agreement was established by donors under which stock was contributed to a
trust for which the Foundation is acting as trustee and will receive the residual value of trust assets upon the
death of the donor. The stock was sold during fiscal year 1999 and the Foundation received net proceeds of
approximately $106,000. The annuity liability was recorded at approximately $74,000 and beginning on
September 30, 1998, quarterly payments of $2,120 to the donor commenced under the terms of the unitrust
agreement. In May 2002, an additional gift of stock was received from the donor and the stock was sold in
June 2002 with an initial fair value of $506,000. An additional annuity liability was recorded in the amount
of approximately $307,000 and beginning on September 30, 2002, additional quarterly payments of $10,120
to the donor commenced. The life of Unitrust Agreement No. 2 was originally estimated to be 13.9 years.

Financial information related to the Unitrust Agreement is as follows for the year ended June 30, 2017:

Fiscal 2017
6/30/17 Change in Present
Liability 6/30/17 Split Value Unitrust

Initial Fair Initial Net 6/30/17 Present Net Interest Discount Payment
 Value Contribution®  Fair Value  Value® Value € Value ® Rate Rate *

612,021 218,362 370,269 30,540 339,729 1,068 7.0% 8.0%

Remain-
ing Life

(vears) &

Total $ 612,021 | § 218,362 | $ 370269 [ $ 30,540 | $ 339,729 | $ 1,068
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Financial information related to the Unitrust Agreement is as follows for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Fiscal 2018
6/30/18 Change in Present
Liability 6/30/18 Split Value Unitrust  Remain-

Initial Fair Initial Net 6/30/18 Present Net Interest Discount Payment ing Life
Value Contribution®  Fair Value  Value® Value ¢ Value ? Rate Rate F (vears) &

612,021 218,362 364,397 31,457 332,940 (917) 7.0% 8.0% 0
Total $ 612,021 | § 218,362 [ § 364397 | $ 31457 | $ 332,940 | $ ©17)

A The initial net contribution equals the initial fair value less the initial liability present value at the date of
the donation to the Foundation.

B The liability measured at the present value of expected future cash flows to be paid to the beneficiary.

€ The net value equals the fair value less the liability present value. This represents the net asset value to the
Foundation as of June 30.

D A revaluation of unitrust assets and corresponding liabilities at June 30 resulted in a change in permanently
restricted endowment fund net assets, which was included as a change in the value of split interest agreements
on the Statements of Activities.

E Based on life expectancy tables included in the Internal Revenue Code.

F The unitrust agreement provides that the donors, during their lifetimes, shall be paid an amount equal to the
percent of the net fair market value of the assets of the trust (as indicated in the above table), based on a
revaluation at the beginning of each taxable year.

Annuity Agreements consist of the following:
Annuity Agreement No. 7

On November 19, 2004, a deferred charitable gift annuity agreement was established by donors under which
cash was contributed. The Foundation will receive the residual value of assets upon the death of the donors.
The annuity liability was initially recorded at approximately $16,789. Payments in the amount of $456.25
are made to the donors on a quarterly basis, beginning on March 31, 2009. As this is a Charitable Gift
Annuity, the Foundation remains liable to continue making payments to the donors during their lifetime,
regardless of the remaining liability balance. The life of Annuity Agreement No. 7 was originally estimated
to be 19.3 years. Wells Fargo is acting as administrator for this charitable gift annuity.

Annuity Agreement No. 8

On October 25, 2005, a deferred charitable gift annuity agreement was established by donors under which
cash was contributed. The Foundation will receive the residual value of assets upon the death of the donors.
The annuity liability was initially recorded at approximately $15,932. Payments in the amount of $468.75
are made to the donors on a quarterly basis, beginning on March 31, 2010. As this is a Charitable Gift
Annuity, the Foundation remains liable to continue making payments to the donors during their lifetime,
regardless of the remaining liability balance. The life of Annuity Agreement No. 8 was originally estimated
to be 18.7 years. Wells Fargo is acting as administrator for this charitable gift annuity.

Annuity Agreement No. 10

On October 13, 2006, a deferred charitable gift annuity agreement was established by donors under which
cash was contributed. The Foundation will receive the residual value of assets upon the death of the donors.
The annuity liability was initially recorded at approximately $18,665. Payments in the amount of $481.25
are made to the donors on a quarterly basis, beginning on September 30, 2010. As this is a Charitable Gift
Annuity, the Foundation remains liable to continue making payments to the donors during their lifetime,
regardless of the remaining liability balance. The life of Annuity Agreement No. 10 was originally estimated
to be 18.2 years. Wells Fargo is acting as administrator for this charitable gift annuity.
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Annuity Agreement No. 12

On October 11, 2011, a deferred charitable gift annuity agreement was established by donors under which
cash was contributed. The Foundation will receive the residual value of assets upon the death of the donors.
The annuity liability was initially recorded at approximately $16,975. Payments in the amount of $393.75
are made to the donors on a quarterly basis, beginning on January 31, 2014. As this is a Charitable Gift
Annuity, the Foundation remains liable to continue making payments to the donors during their lifetime,
regardless of the remaining liability balance. The life of Annuity Agreement No. 12 was originally estimated
to be 15.3 years. Wells Fargo is acting as administrator for this charitable gift annuity.

Annuity Agreement No. 13

On November 2, 2015, a deferred charitable gift annuity agreement was established by donors under which
cash was contributed. The Foundation will receive the residual value of assets upon the death of the donors.
The annuity liability was initially recorded at approximately $14,966. Payments in the amount of $331.25
are made to the donors on a quarterly basis, beginning on December 31, 2015. As this is a Charitable Gift
Annuity, the Foundation remains liable to continue making payments to the donors during their lifetime,
regardless of the remaining liability balance. The life of Annuity Agreement No. 13 was originally estimated
to be 15.2 years. Wells Fargo is acting as administrator for this charitable gift annuity.

Annuity Agreement No. 14

On November 12, 2015, a deferred charitable gift annuity agreement was established by donors under which
cash was contributed. The Foundation will receive the residual value of assets upon the death of the donors.
The annuity liability was initially recorded at approximately $211,728. Payments in the amount of $10,000
are made to the donors on a quarterly basis, beginning on December 31, 2015. As this is a Charitable Gift
Annuity, the Foundation remains liable to continue making payments to the donors during their lifetime,
regardless of the remaining liability balance. The life of Annuity Agreement No. 14 was originally estimated
to be 6.4 years. Wells Fargo is acting as administrator for this charitable gift annuity.

Financial information related to Annuity Agreements is as follows for the year ended June 30, 2017:

Fiscal 2017
6/30/17 Change in Present Re-
Initial Initial Net Liability 6/30/17 Split Value Annuity maining
Fair Contri- 6/30/17 Present Net Interest Discount  Payment Life
Value bution * Fair Value Value ® Value € Value ® Rate Rate © (vears) *
Nos. 7,
8,10 & 100,000 35,547 140,375 53,195 87,180 3,239 7.0% 7.3% 10.3
12
No. 13 25,000 10,034 24,878 13,922 10,956 568 7.0% 5.3% 13.7
No. 14 500,000 288,272 475,173 166,658 308,515 25,386 7.0% 8.0% 4.9
Total | $ 625,000 | $ 333,853 | § 640,426 | $ 233,775 | $406,651 | $ 29,193

Financial information related to Annuity Agreements is as follows for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Fiscal 2018
6/30/18 Change in Present Re-
Initial Initial Net Liability 6/30/18 Split Value Annuity  maining
Fair Contri- 6/30/18 Present Net Interest Discount Payment Life
Value bution * Fair Value Value B Value © Value ? Rate Rate £ (vears) F
Nos. 7,
8,10& 100,000 35,547 89,589 49,715 39,874 3,480 7.0% 7.3% 9.3
12
No. 13 25,000 10,034 26,583 13,323 13,260 599 7.0% 5.3% 12.7
No. 14 500,000 288,272 492,701 139,180 353,521 27,478 7.0% 8.0% 39
Total | $ 625,000 | $ 333,853 | § 608,873 | $ 202,218 | $ 406,655 | $§ 31,557
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A The initial net contribution equals the initial fair value less the initial liability present value at the date of
the donation to the Foundation.

B The liability measured at the present value of expected future cash flows to be paid to the beneficiary.

€ The net value equals the fair value less the liability present value. This represents the net asset value to the
Foundation as of June 30.

D Revaluation of annuity assets and corresponding liabilities at June 30 resulted in a change in permanently
restricted endowment fund net assets, which was included in contribution income on the Statements of
Activities.

E The annuity agreement provides that the donors, during their lifetimes, shall be paid an amount equal to the
percent of the net fair market value of the assets (as indicated in the above table), based on the valuation as
of the date of conveyance to the Foundation.

¥ Based on life expectancy tables included in the Internal Revenue Code.

Note 9 — Notes Payable

A summary of notes payable as of June 30, 2017 and 2018, is as follows:

Notes Payable

1.0% Trinity Health Corporation, unsecured, payable in its $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000
entirety on or before December 31, 2019, with interest paid
annually each December 31%,
Less portion considered current 0 0
Long term portion $ 2000000 § 2,000,000

Maturities of long term debt for the next five years are as follows:

‘ Amount
Years Ended June 30 Principal Interest
2019 $ 0 $ 20,000
2020 2,000,000 10,000
Total $ 2.000,000 $ 30,000

Interest accrued during fiscal year 2017 and fiscal year 2018 was $10,000 each year.

Note 10 — Net Assets: Unrestricted - Board Designated Reserves

Unrestricted net assets include amounts designated by the Foundation’s Board of Governors for specific uses.
These amounts consist of the following:

Reserve for Contingency - General

The purpose of this reserve is to cover the general cash flow needs of the Foundation to maintain financial
viability.
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Reserve for Contingency — Sponsored Programs (Designated Fund)

The Foundation is the primary fiscal agent for California State University, Fresno, which administers research
and special projects funded by Federal agencies. The Federal rules and regulations are very complex and are
subject to audit. As such, certain expenditures may be disallowed as a result of an audit. This reserve
provides funds for any disallowed costs. Included in “Net Assets, Unrestricted-Board Designated Reserves”
are the following:

Board Designated Reserves 2017 2018
General Fund:

Reserve for Contingency - General § 2289806 $ 2412242
Designated Fund:

Reserve for Contingency — Sponsored Programs $ 488315 $ 342,920
Charitable Gift Annuities Reserve $ 100,000 $ 100,000
Support for New California Ventures, LLC $ 346,812 § 0
Total Board Designated Reserves § 3224933 $§ 2.855.162

Management believes that as of June 30, 2017 and 2018 the reserve balances are sufficient for their intended
purposes.

Note 11 — Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2017 and 2018 consist of the following:

2017 2018
Campus Programs $ 34235374 $§ 34,483,970
Loans and Scholarships 5,626,741 6,462,670
Endowments 35,798,915 37,018,186
New California Ventures, LLC 203,189 509,227
$ 75864219 $ 78474053

Net assets released by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purpose:

2017 © 2018
Campus Programs $ 7,301,608 $ 7,765,892
Loans and Scholarships 698,915 717,041
Endowments 6,796,430 7,295,761
$ 14,796,953 § 15.778,694
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Note 12 — Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2017 and 2018 consist of the following:

Loans and Scholarships $ 1424797 § 1,545,691
Endowment assets 105,759,712 113,454,844

$ 107,184,509 $ 115,000,535

Note 13 — Non-Cash Transactions

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Foundation donated to the University equipment and building
construction costs of $386,643 and $960,763, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the
Foundation donated to the University equipment and building construction costs of $1,125,515 and $39,737,
respectively. The donation expense is included in Campus Support.

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Foundation donated equipment to The Agricultural Foundation of
California State University, Fresno with a cost of $1,642. During the year ended June 30, 2018, the
Foundation donated equipment to The Agricultural Foundation of California State University, Fresno with a
cost of $10,389. The donation expense is included in Campus Support.

Note 14 — Leases and Agreements

The Foundation has entered into an operating lease for office space at 2600 Tenth St, Berkeley, CA for a
sponsored program (Central CA Training Academy-Bay Area Academy). The payment is $12,053 per
month. The lease expires in June 2021.

The Foundation has entered into various operating lease agreements with Dell Financial Services for the use
of office equipment by the Fresno State Foundation (4910 N. Chestnut Ave. Fresno, CA). The annual expense
for these leases is $6,040. The leases expire between July 2018 and February 2021.

The Foundation has entered into an operating lease agreement with Delage Landen Financial Services for
the use of office equipment by the Fresno State Foundation (4910 N. Chestnut Ave. Fresno, CA). The
payment is $841 per month. The lease expires in December 2020.

The Foundation has entered into an operating lease for office space at 2743 E. Shaw Ave, Ste 101, Fresno,
CA for a sponsored program (Wayfinders). The payment is $4,250 per month. The lease expires in March
2022.

The Foundation has entered into an operating agreement with the Trustees of the California State University.
The purpose of this agreement is to set forth terms and conditions under which the Foundation may operate
as an auxiliary organization pursuant to Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations. The agreement expires
in June 2022.

Rental expenses under operating leases during the fiscal year 2017 and fiscal year 2018 were $20,333 and
$20,662, respectively.

Future minimum payments on the leases are as follows:

Year Ended June 30:
2019 §$ 211,771
2020 § 214,031
2021 § 211,280
2022 $ 34,000
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Note 15 — Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017:

General &

Fund Raising

Expenses Program Administrative (Development)
Salaries and wages $ 15,393,291 $ 685,764 $ 0 § 16,079,055
Fringe benefits 4,373,924 699,860 5,073,784
Equipment 580,343 580,343
Student support 6,488,704 6,488,704
Campus support 15,951,419 15,951,419
Overhead 3,116,710 3,116,710
Donations-agency accounts 2,150,000 2,150,000
Investment Fees 557,469 557,469
Other costs 9,219,597 4,102,230 360,000 13,681,827
Total 55,123,988 8,195,323 360,000 63,679,311
Less expenses included with
Revenue and Support:
Investment Fees (557,469) (557,469)
Net expenses $ 55123998 § 7,637,854 3 360,000 $ 63,121,842

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018:

Expenses

Program

General &

Administrative

Fund Raising

(Development)

| Salaries and wages $ 15,058,425 § 704,449 $ 0 §$ 15,762,874
Fringe benefits 4,453,902 372,175 4,826,077
Equipment 818,857 818,857
Student support 6,216,788 6,216,788
Campus support 16,252,312 16,252,312
Overhead 3,065,777 3,065,777
Donations-agency accounts 2,150,000 2,150,000
Investment Fees 518,842 518,842
Other costs 9,595,098 5,022,273 360,000 14,977,371

Total 55,461,159 8,767,739 360,000 64,588,898
Less expenses included with
Revenue and Support:
Investment Fees (518,842) (518,842)
Net expenses $ 55461159 $ 8.248.897 § 360,000 $ 64,070,056
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Note 16 — 401(k) Profit-Sharing Plan

The Foundation has a 401(k) profit-sharing plan for benefited employees working on grants, contracts, or
campus programs. Employer contributions to the plan are based on available budget funding from grantor
agencies or campus programs. Employer contributions to the plan charged to sponsored programs or campus
programs during fiscal year 2017 and fiscal year 2018 were $686,509 and $720,172, respectively.

Note 17 — Post Retirement Obligation

As described in Note 7 — “Management Services”, the Foundation reimburses the Association for retired
employees’ health benefit payments for persons employed by the Association but performing services for the
Foundation. The Foundation reflects within its Statements of Financial Position the liability associated with
these future payments as calculated in accordance with the Defined Benefit Plans Topic of the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification. Any change within this calculated balance is reflected within the
Statements of Activities as a change in Unrestricted Net Assets.

The post retirement obligation as of June 30, 2017 and 2018, is included in accounts payable (long-term
portion) and accrued salaries and benefits payable (current portion) as follows:

Current portion $§ 75161 § 75,161

Long-term portion 585.319 585.319
Total $§ 660,480 § 660,480

As of both June 30, 2017 and 2018, the post retirement obligation is unfunded. Benefit payments during
fiscal years 2017 and 2018 totaled $75,161 and $75,396 respectively.

Note 18 - Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 19, 2018 (date financial statements
available to be issued) and determined no events have occurred subsequent to June 30, 2018 that would
require adjustment to, or disclosure in the financial statements.
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California State University, Fresno Foundation
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2018

Federal Pass-Through Federal Expenditures
CFDA Grant Award or Contract Program to
Federal Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title Number Pass-Through Grantor Number Expenditures Subrecipients
Research & Development Cluster
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Direct programs:
Agricultural Research Basic and Applied Research 10.001 $ 8,672
Plant and Animal Disease, Pest Control, and Animal Care 10.025 $ 48,111
Alfalfa and Forage Research Program 10.330 $ 5,488
Subtotal U.S. Department of Agriculture direct $ 62,271 $ -
programs:
Pass-through programs from:
Agricultural Research Basic and Applied Research 10.001 California State University, Fresno SA80576 3 59,020
Agricultural Research Basic and Applied Research 10.001 California State University, Fresno SA82220 3 1,740
Agricultural Research Basic and Applied Research 10.001 California State University, Fresno SA82935 3 38,986
Agricultural Research Basic and Applied Research 10.001 California State University, Fresno SA83127 $ 6,996
Agricultural Research Basic and Applied Research 10.001 California State University, Fresno SA83276 $ 15,126
Specialty Crop Block Grant Program - Farm Bill 10.170 California State University, SA76628 $ 61,631 § 2,345
Fresno/California Department of Food &
Agriculture

Specialty Crop Block Grant Program - Farm Bill 10.170 California State University, 201601840-03 $ 10,786
Fresno/California Department of Food &
Agriculture

Hispanic Serving Institutions Education Grants 10.223 California State University, San GT-15144 $ 25,137
Bernardino

Capacity Building for Non-Land Grant Colleges of 10.326 2017-70001-25985 3$ 104,919

Agriculture (NLGCA)

Capacity Building for Non-Land Grant Colleges of 10.326 21A471-02 $ 18,552

Agriculture (NLGCA)

Subtotal U.S. Department of Agriculture pass- $ 342,893 § 2,345
through programs:

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture: $ 405,164 § 2,345

National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration

Direct programs:

NOAA Mission-Related Education 11.008 $ 2,388
Subtotal National Oceanic and Atmospheric $ 2,888 §$ -
Administration direct programs:

Total National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 3 2,888 $ -

Department of Commerce:

Direct Programs:

Science, Technology, Business and/or Education Outreach 11.620 $ 4,728
Subtotal Department of Commerce direct $ 4,728 § -

Total Department of Commerce: $ 4,728 $ -

U.S. Department of Defense:

Direct programs:

Basic, Applied, and Advanced Research in Science and 12.630 $ 431,128

Engineering
Subtotal U.S. Department of Defense direct $ 431,128 $ -
programs:

Total U.S. Department of Defense: $ 431,128 § -

U.S. Department of the Interior:

Direct programs:

San Joaquin River Restoration Program 15.555 $ 207,500 $ 198,327
Subtotal U.S. Department of the Interior direct $ 207,500 $ 198,327
programs:

Total U.S. Department of the Interior: 3 207,500 $ 198,327

Department of Justice:

Pass-through programs from:

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 0076159/00054545 $ 19,630
Subtotal Department of Justice pass-through 3 19,630 § -
programs:

Total U.S. Department of Justice $ 19,630 $ -

National Aeronautics and Space Administration:

Pass-through programs from:

Science 43.001 Princeton University SUB0000073 $ 30,205

Technology Transfer 43.002 Jet Propulsion Laboratory 1556698 $ 180,920
Subtotal National Aeronautics and Space $ 211,125 $ -
Administration pass-through programs:

Total U.S. Department of the Interior: $ 211,125 $ -
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California State University, Fresno Foundation
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Federal Pass-Through Federal Expenditures
CFDA Grant Award or Contract Program to
Federal Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title Number Pass-Through Grantor Number Expenditures Subrecipients

National Endowment Humanities:

Pass-through programs from:

Promotion of the Humanities_Federal/State Partnership 45.129 California Humanities HFAP17-4 $ 13,806
Subtotal National Endowment Humanities pass- $ 13,806 $ -
through programs:

Total National Endowment Humanities: $ 13,806 $ -

National Science Foundation:

Direct programs:

Mathematical and Physical Sciences 47.049 $ 398,277 $ 1,730

Geosciences 47.050 $ 18,100

Computer and Information Science and Engineering 47.070 3 299,500 $ 7,184

Biological Sciences 47.074 $ 344,930

Education and Human Resources 47.076 $ 588,667 $ 141,211
Subtotal National Science Foundation direct $ 1,649,474 § 150,125
programs:

Pass-through programs from:

Engineering Grants 47.041 28250-04301-S14 $ 4,843

Engineering Grants 47.041 28250-04301-S17 $ 4,999

Education and Human Resources 47.076 University Enterprises, Inc. (California 523794 3 4,812

State University, Northridge)
Education and Human Resources 47.076 University Enterprises, Inc. (California 523795 $ 21,566
State University, Northridge)
Subtotal National Science Foundation pass-through $ 36,220 § -
programs:

Total National Science Foundation: $ 1,685,694 $ 150,125

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:

Pass-through programs from:

Science to Achieve Results (STAR) Research Program 66.509 The Regents of the University of 00008441-03 $ 10,281

California
Science to Achieve Results (STAR) Research Program 66.509 The Regents of the University of 00008441 $ 68,384
California
Subtotal U.S. Environmental Protection Agency $ 78,665 § -
pass-through programs:

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency; $ 78,665 $ -

US Department of Education

Direct programs:

American History and Civics Education 84.422 $ 177,505 $ 13,318
Subtotal U.S. Department of Education direct $ 177,505 $ 13,318
programs:

Total U.S. Department of Education $ 177,505 $ 13,318

Department of Health and Human Services:

Direct programs:

Diabetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramural 93.847 $ 19,614

Research

Biomedical Research and Research Training 93.859 $ 645219 $ 11,738
Subtotal Department of Health and Human Services $ 664,833 $ 11,738
direct programs: .

Pass-through programs from:

Community Services Block Grant 93.569 California State University, Fresno SA82400 $ 30,311
Subtotal Department of Health and Human Services $ 30,311 $ -
pass-through programs:

Total Department of Health and Human Services $ 695,144 § 11,738

Miscellaneous/No CFDA Code:

Pass-through programs from:

Miscellaneous/No CFDA Code 99.RD Booze Allen Hamilton 105795SB44 $ 35,690
Subtotal Miscellaneous/No CFDA Code pass- $ 35,690 $ -
through programs:

Total Miscellaneous/No CFDA Code: $ 35,690 $ -
Total Research and Development Cluster $ 3,968,667 $ 375,853
TRIO Cluster

Department of Education:

Direct programs:

TRIO Student Support Services 84.042 $ (22,493)
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Federal Pass-Through Federal Expenditures
CFDA Grant Award or Contract Program
Federal Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title Number Pass-Through Grantor Number Expenditures Subrecipients
TRIO Student Support Services 84.042 $ 315,690
TRIO Student Support Services 84.042 $ 228,739
TRIO Student Support Services 84.042 $ 195,397
TRIO Talent Search 84.044 $ -
TRIO Talent Search 84.044 3 329,010
TRIO Talent Search 84.044 $ 278,187
TRIO Upward Bound 84.047 $ 209,486
TRIO Upward Bound 84.047 $ 156,586
TRIO Upward Bound 84.047 $ 292,194
TRIO Upward Bound 84.047 $ 161,893
TRIO Educational Opportunity Centers 84.066 $ 371,875
TRIO McNair Post Baccalaureate Achievement 84.217 3 64,579
TRIO McNair Post Baccalaureate Achievement 84.217 $ 168,195
Subtotal Department of Education direct programs: $ 2,749,338 -
Total TRIO Cluster $ 2,749,338 - ok
WIA/WIOA Cluster
Department of Labor:
Pass-through programs from:
WIA/WIOA Adult Program & Dislocated Worker Formula 17.258 Fresno Regional Workforce Investment 719 $ 179,839 (1,049)
Grant Board
WIA/WIOA Adult Program & Dislocated Worker Formula CA Manufacturing Tech Consulting FEE0977 3 6,373
Grant
‘Workforce Innovation Fund 17.283 Employment Development Board K8109249 3 11,039
Subtotal Department of Labor pass-through $ 197,251 (1,049)
programs:
Total WIA/WIOA Cluster $ 197,251 (1,049)
Highway Safety Cluster
Department of Transportation:
Pass-through programs from:
National Priority Safety Program 20.616 Office of Traffic Safety/California State OP174 / SA79564 $ 77,625
University, Fresno
National Priority Safety Program 20.616 Office of Traffic Safety/California State OP18005 / SA82357 $ 162,046
University, Fresno
Subtotal Department of Transportation pass- $ 239,671 -
through programs:
Total Highway Safety Cluster $ 239,671 - ok
Other Programs
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Direct programs:
Farmers Market and Local Food Promotion Program 10.168 $ 14,186
Hispanic Serving Institutions Education Grants 10.223 $ 55,571 8,847
Capacity Building for Non-Land Grant Colleges of 10.326 $ 40,360
Agriculture (NLGCA) '
Rural Business Development Grant 10.351 $ (3,700)
Rural Community Development Initiative 10.446 $ 4,946
Cooperative Extension Service 10.500 $ 4,200
Soil and Water Conservation 10.902 $ 32,234
Cochran Fellowship Program-International Training-Foreign ~ 10.962 $ 62,312
Participant
Subtotal U.S. Department of Agriculture direct $ 210,109 8,847
programs:
Pass-through programs from:
Agriculture and Food Research Initiative (AFRI) 10.310 University of Illinois 2014-07341-01 $ 65,606
Capacity Building for Non-Land Grant Colleges of 10.326 California State University, Stanislaus C1136B $ 4,161
Agriculture (NLGCA)
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 California Department of Education-Child  04095-SFSP-10 2017 $ 34,196
Nutrition
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 California Department of Education-Child ~ 04095-SFSP-10 2018 $ 10,767
Nutrition
State Administrative Matching Grants for the Supplemental 10.561 California State University, Chico SUB16-044 $ 17,007
Nutrition Assistance Program Research Foundation
Farm to School Grant Program 10.575 $ 14,717
Subtotal U.S. Department of Agriculture pass- $ 146,454 -
through programs:
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture $ 356,563 8,847
Department of Commerce:
Direct Programs:
Cluster Grants 11.020 $ 191,667
Subtotal Department of Commerce direct $ 191,667 -
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Federal Pass-Through Federal Expenditures
CFDA Grant Award or Contract Program to
Federal Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title Number Pass-Through Grantor Number Expenditures Subrecipients
Pass-through programs from:
Economic Development_Technical Assistance 11.303 California State University, Chico 07-66-06881-04 $ 2,308
Research Foundation/-Economic
Development Administration
Economic Development_Technical Assistance 11.303 California State University, Chico ED17SEA3030036 3 73,428
Research Foundation/-Economic
Development Administration
Economic Adjustment Assistance 11.307 Valley Vision/Economic Development 07-79-07295 $ 3,412
Administration
Subtotal Department of Commerce pass-through 3 79,148 $ -
programs:
Total Department of Commerce: $ 270,815
Department of Defense:
Direct programs from:
Language Grant Program 12.900 $ 27,919
Subtotal Department of Defense direct programs: $ 27919 $ -
Total Department of Defense: $ 27919 $ -
Department of Justice:
Pass-through programs from:
Project Safe Neighborhoods 16.609 Fresno Police Department PSN2015 $ 90,824
Edward Byrne Memorial Competitive Grant Program 16.751 Kings County Prosecuting Attorney 5897364 $ 99,984
Smart Prosecution Initiative 16.825 Jackson County ORD 4925 $ 54,109
Subtotal Department of Justice pass-through $ 244917 § -
programs:
Total Department of Justice: $ 244917 § -
National Aeronautics and Space Administration:
Direct programs:
Education 43.008 3 69,637
Subtotal National Aeronautics and Space $ 69,637 $ -
Administration direct programs:
Pass-through programs from:
Education 43.008 Napa Valley College CSUF16 $ 55,629
Education 43.008 University of California, San M0081607 $ 8,000
Diego/California Space Grant
Subtotal National Aeronautics and Space $ 63,629 § -
Administration pass-through programs:
Total National Aeronautics and Space Administration: $ 133,266 § -
National Endowment Humanities:
Pass-through programs from:
Promotion of the Humanities_Division of Preservation and 45.149 California State University, Dominguez 500027 $ 5,381
Access Hills
Subtotal National Endowment Humanities pass- $ 5381 § -
through programs:
Total National Endowment Humanities $ 5381 §$ -
Small Business Administration:
Pass-through programs from:
Small Business Development Center 59.037 Regents of the University of California, F300GUA074 $ 94,628
Merced
Subtotal Small Business Administration pass- $ 94,628 § -
through programs:
Total Small Business Administration $ 94,628 $ -
U.S. Department of Education:
Direct programs:
Higher Education Institutional Aid 84.031 3 539,852
Rehabilitation Long Term Training 84.129 3 218,652
Migrant Education: College Assistance Migrant Program 84.149 $ 363,351
Special Education-Personnel Development To Improve 84.325 $ 326,243 § 641
Services & Results for Children With Disabilities
Transition Programs For Students With Intellectual 84.407 3 490,990
Disabilities Into Higher Education
Subtotal U.S. Department of Education direct $ 1,939,088 § 641

programs:
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California State University, Fresno Foundation
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Federal Pass-Through Federal Expenditures
CFDA Grant Award or Contract Program
Federal Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title Number Pass-Through Grantor Number Expenditures Subrecipients
Pass-through programs from:
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Fresno Unified School District 060-3010-0798-1110-2100-  § 15,084
5110
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Fresno Unified School District P0O497379 $ 71,289
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Clovis Unified School District 3170593 $ 3,094
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Clovis Unified School District 3180475 3 48,826
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Clovis Unified School District 3170239 $ 2,895
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Clovis Unified School District 3180017 $ 38,438
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Exeter Unified School District NONE $ 10,251
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Exeter Unified School District NONE $ 18,238
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Lindsay Unified School District NONE $ 575
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Selma Unified School District NONE $ 3,925
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Selma Unified School District 180155 $ 10,563
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Selma Unified School District 180154 $ 426
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Twin Rivers Unified School District 770577 $ 6,040
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Twin Rivers Unified School District NONE $ 50,906
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 Twin Rivers Unified School District 770577 $ 18,413
Subtotal Title I Grants to Local Educational $ 298,963 -
Migrani Ed;\ééﬁon_smte Grant Program 84.011 Merced County Superintendent of Schools 172120 $ 69,395
Migrant Education_State Grant Program 84.011 Kern County Superintendent of Schools 703723 $ 3,032
84.011 Kern County Superintendent of Schools 802420 $ 26,210
Migrant Education_State Grant Program 84.011 Monterey County Superintendent of NONE 3 131,733
Schools
Migrant Education_State Grant Program 84.011 Monterey County Office of Education 5220 $ 33,602
Migrant Education_State Grant Program 84.011 Madera Unified School District NONE $ 10,001
Migrant Education_State Grant Program 84.011 Madera Unified School District 374-2016/17 $ 2,996
Migrant Education_State Grant Program 84.011 Merced County Superintendent of Schools NONE $ 10,988
Subtotal Migrant Education_State Grant Program $ 287,957 -
Career and Technical Education-Basic Grants to States 84.048 California Department of Education CN150254 $ 6,400
Career and Technical Education-Basic Grants to States 84.048 California Department of Education CN160130 $ 7,435
Career and Technical Education-Basic Grants to States 84.048 California Department of Education CN160086 $ 17,989
Career and Technical Education-Basic Grants to States 84.048 California Department of Education CN170329 $ 202,653
Career and Technical Education-Basic Grants to States 84.048 California Department of Education CN170305 $ 6,375
Subtotal Career and Technical Education-Basic 3$ 240,852 -
Grants to States
Rehabilitation Services_Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to ~ 84.126 California Department of Rehabilitation 30043 $ 131,481
States
Subtotal Rehabilitation Services_Vocational $ 131,481 -
Rehabilitation Grants to States
Migrant Education: College Assistance Migrant Program 84.149 Fresno County Superintendent of Schools  None $ 319
Subtotal Migrant Education College Assistance $ 319 -
Migrant Program
Mathematics and Science Partnerships 84.366 Clovis Unified School District None $ 864
Mathematics and Science Partnerships 84.366 Clovis Unified School District 3170434 $ 10,076
Subtotal Mathematics and Science Partnerships $ 10,940 -
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 National Writing Project, University of 93-CA16-SEED2017- $ 10,833
California CRWPAI
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 University of California, Office of the NCLB13-CMP-FRESNO $ 3,681
President
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 University of California, Office of the NCLB14-CRLP-FRESNO 3 39,068
President
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 University of California, Office of the NCLB14-CWLP-FRESNO  $ 25,941
President
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 University of California, Office of the NCLB14-CWP-FRESNO $ 31,209
President
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 University of California, Office of the NCLB14-CMP-FRESNO 3 64,595 17,500
President
Subtotal Improving Teacher Quality State Grants $ 175,327 17,500
Subtotal U.S. Department of Education pass- $ 1,145,839 17,500
through programs:
Total U.S. Department of Education $ 3,084,927 18,141
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Federal Pass-Through Federal Expenditures
CFDA Grant Award or Contract Program to
Federal Grantor/Program Title or Cluster Title Number Pass-Through Grantor Number Expenditures Subrecipients
Department of Health and Human Services:
Direct programs:
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services:Projects of 93.243 $ 19,215
Regional and National Significance
Advanced Nursing Education Workforce Grant Program 93.247 $ 322,225
Subtotal Department of Health and Human Services $ 341,440 $ -
direct programs:
Pass-through programs from:
Partnerships to Improve Community Health 93.331 County of Fresno 15-323 $ 26,065
Subtotal Partnerships to Improve Community Health $ 26,065 $ -
Promoting Safe & Stable Family 93.556 Central Valley Regional Center NONE $ 30,492
Subtotal Promoting Safe & Stable Family $ 30,492 $ -
Child Welfare Research Training or Demonstration 93.648 County of San Mateo 074613 2017 $ 8,433
Child Welfare Research Training or Demonstration 93.648 County of San Mateo 074613 2018 $ 270,919
Subtotal Child Welfare Research Training or $ 279,352 § -
Demonstration
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 California Department of Social Services ~ 15-STD-01087 $ 2,460,796
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 California Department of Social Services ~ 15-STD-01090 $ 2,835,005
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 California Department of Social Services ~ 18-3023 $ 17,341
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 Contra Costa County 19-826-1 $ 176,212
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 County of Ventura NONE $ 187,913
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 Fresno County Social Services A-14-400 $ 1,765
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 Monterey County Department of Social A-12811 $ 4,108
Services
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 Monterey County Department of Social A-13716 $ 110,411
- Services
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 San Francisco County PSC 2001-08/09 $ 986,590
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 University of California, Berkeley BB00831669 $ 1,268
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 University of California, Berkeley BB00831673 $ 2,559
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 University of California, Berkeley BB01015756 $ 1,208
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 University of California, Berkeley BB01032079 $ 37,894
Foster Care Title IV-E 93.658 University of California, Berkeley 00009240 $ 2,664,450
Subtotal Foster Care Title IV-E $ 9,487,520 § -
Subtotal Department of Health and Human Services $ 9,823,429 § -
pass-through programs:.
Total Department of Health and Hauman Services: $ 10,164,869 $ -
Corporate National Community Service:
Pass-through programs from:
AmeriCorps 94.006 Jumpstart 130200 $ 150,241
Subtotal Corporate National Community Service $ 150,241 § -
pass-through programs:
Total Corporate National Community Service: $ 150,241 § -
Miscellaneous/No CFDA Code:
Direct programs:
Miscellaneous/No CFDA Code 99 $ 12,481
Subtotal Miscellaneous/No CFDA Code direct $ 12,481 § -
programs:
Total Miscellaneous/No CFDA Code: 99.RD $ 12,481 § -
Total Other Programs: $ 14,546,007 $ 26,988
Grand Total Federal Awards 3 21,700,934 § 401,792

#* Tdentifies Major Federal Programs

See Note D on page 36 for disclosure of Calilfornia Department of Education Awards.
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California State University, Fresno Foundation
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2018

Note A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award activity of California State University,
Fresno Foundation under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2018. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of California
State University, Fresno Foundation, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of California
State University, Fresno Foundation.

Note B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following, as applicable,
either the cost principles in OMB Circular A-21, Cost Principles for Educational Institutions, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein certain
types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits
made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where
available.

Note C. Indirect Cost Rate
California State University, Fresno Foundation has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

Note D. Schedule of Expenditures of California Department of Education Awards
Pass through Agreement |CDE Agreement

Program Name Number Number Amount Expended
Summer Food Service Program '17 04095-SFSP-10 | §$ 34,196
Summer Food Service Program '18 04095-SFSP-10 | $ 10,767
NCLB14-CRLP-Fresno CA Read Lit NCLB14-CRLP-FRESNO |CN170224 $ 39,068
NCLB14 CCWLP '18 NCLB14-CWLP-FRESNO |CN170224 $ 25,941
NCLB14-CWP-SJVWP '18 NCLB14-CWP-FRESNO CN170224 $ 31,209
NCLB14-SJVMP '18 CMP NCLB14-CMP-FRESNO CN170224 $ 64,595
NCLB13-SJVMP '17 CMP NCLB13-CMP-FRESNO CN160088 $ 3,681
CDE-Office Contract '18 CN150254 $ 6,400
Family Consumer Sciences '18 CN170329 $ 202,653
CDE-Office Contract '19 CN170305 $ 6,375
Home Economics In-Service '17 CN160130 $ 7,435
Ag Education Curriculum '17 CN160086 $ 17,989
Total California Department of Education Awards $ 450,309
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FRESNO FOUNDATION
GENERAL FUND ADMINISTRATION COST CENTER - CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018

INDIRECT COSTS AND OTHER INCOME: BUDGET ACTUAL
Indirect cost recovery $ 2,500,000 $ 3,058,042
Handling charges 249,000 288,428

Subtotal - Indirect and Handling 2,749,000 3,346,470
Miscellaneous Income - 821
Short term investments 825,000 1,802,170
Endowment administrative fee 1,561,000 1,561,000

Total Income 5,135,000 6,710,461
EXPENSES:
Personnel:
Monthly 630,644 655,596
Student 47,000 48,853
Employee benefits 303,624 296,779
Retired employee benefit (actual and accrual) 100,000 75,396
Accounting (audit) 67,000 51,500
Board/Committee meetings 10,500 6,828
Consultants 5,000 25,450
Management services 722,934 722,934
CSU Trustee Scholarship 6,000 6,000
Depreciation 25,635 27,031
Dues & Memberships 9,100 8,923
Equipment leasing 23,500 20,662
Employee recruitment 2,200 28
General insurance 106,897 106,194
Legal fees:
General 2,000 9,382
Employment 10,000 357
Sponsored Programs/Patents 3,000 3,746
Gifts 2,000 -
Licenses, permits & fees 14,300 9,845
Miscellaneous 6,000 2,819
Office supplies 27,200 22,477
Postage 9,000 7,996
Repairs & maintenance 27,000 27,826
Software 27,250 38,587
Travel/training 6,500 3,045
Telephone 7,500 7,542
Utilities 24,600 26,739
Advancement Gift Assessment 360,000 360,000
University Indirect Costs 320,000 320,000
Total Expenses 2,906,385 2,892,535
Gross Surplus Available For Distribution $ 2228615 $ 3,817,926
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Governors
California State University, Fresno Foundation
Fresno, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of California State University, Fresno Foundation,
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the related
statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 19, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered
California State University, Fresno Foundation’s internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of California State
University, Fresno Foundation’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of California State University, Fresno Foundation’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether California State University,
Fresno Foundation’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

% E
Fresno, California
September 19, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Governors
California State University, Fresno Foundation
Fresno, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited California State University, Fresno Foundation’s compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of California State University, Fresno
Foundation’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. California State
University, Fresno Foundation’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the
terms and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of California State
University, Fresno Foundation’s major federal programs based on our audit of the types
of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about California State University, Fresno Foundation’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination
of California State University, Fresno Foundation’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, California State University, Fresno Foundation complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of California State University, Fresno Foundation is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered California State University, Fresno Foundation’s internal
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of California State
University, Fresno Foundation’s internal control over compliance. ’

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of
a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing
based on requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Fresno, California
September 19, 2018
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FRESNO FOUNDATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements
= Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified opinion

* Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness identified: No
Significant deficiencies identified: None reported
* Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted: No
Federal Awards
= Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness identified: No
Significant deficiencies identified: None reported
= Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified opinion

*  Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with

2 CFR section 200.516(a): No
= Major Programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.042 TRIO Cluster
84.044 TRIO Cluster
84.047 ‘ TRIO Cluster
84.066 TRIO Cluster
84.217 TRIO Cluster
20.616 Highway Safety Cluster
84.031 Higher Education Institutional Aid
84.129 Rehabilitation Long Term Training
84.407 Transition Programs For Students With Intellectual
Disabilities Into Higher Education
93.247 Advanced Nursing Education Workforce Grant Program
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FRESNO FOUNDATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS (Continued)

* Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs for
program determination:

* California State University, Fresno Foundation qualified as low-risk auditee.
SECTION II — FINDINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -
MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

44

$750,000
Yes

None

None



CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FRESNO FOUNDATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Section II — Findings — Financial Statements Aundit

Section IIT — Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Award Programs Audit

45

None

None
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CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FRESNO FOUNDATION
Schedule of Net Position
June 30, 2018
(for inclusion in the California State University)

Assets:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net
Notes receivable, current portion
Pledges receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Student loans receivable, net
Pledges receivable, net
Endowment investments
Other long-term investments
Capital assets, net
Other assets

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued compensated absences, current portion

Unearned revenues
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion
Depository accounts
Other liabilities

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Others

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable — endowments
Expendable:
Scholarships and fellowships
Loans
Others
Unrestricted

Total net position
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$

$

3,236,307
39,341,412
17,386,472

5,322

1,801,084

93,507

61,864,104

355,140
3,390,038
141,879,013
2,024,261
59,158
454,658

148,162,268

210,026,372

2,064,494
1,162,935
67,984
3,817,019
65,571

7,178,003

2,000,000
2,741,053
869,043

5,610,096

12,788,099

1,013,954

1,013,954

59,158
113,454,844

43,480,856
1,545,691
34,993,197
2,690,574

196,224,320




CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, FRESNO FOUNDATION

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

June 30, 2018

(for inclusion in the California State University)

Revenues:

Operating revenues:
Grants and contracts, noncapital:
Federal
State
Nongovernmental
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, gross
Scholarship allowances (0)

Total operating revenues

Expenses:

Operating expenses:
Instruction
Research
Public service
Institutional support
Student grants and scholarships
Auxiliary enterprise expenses
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Gifts, noncapital
Investment income (loss), net
Endowment income (loss), net
Interest expense

Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) - excl. interagency transfers
Net nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before other revenues (expenses)
Additions (reductions) to permanent endowments

Increase (decrease) in net position

Net position:
Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported

Net position at end of year
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$ 21,700,934
8,087,564
3,834,588

4,907,470

38,530,556

13,062,110
6,544,169
16,978,834
505,623
4,024,760
6,675,217
27,031

47,817,744

(9,287,188)

7,070,634
2,526,244
9,098,613

(30,000)

(5,178,657)

13,486,834

4,199,646
7,757,413

11,957,059

184,267,261

$ 196,224,320




00S°SHE9E 6¥0°S9T — LETVESOVL - 989°vT €81
— 6v1¥TC — 8L0°58T LTT'60S
— 0060% — 006°0Z€ 008°19€
— — — 085°CS 085°CS
— — — 10€°201Y 10€°201Y
$00°0€C €T — — — $00°0€T €T
96¥'STIEL — — — 96v°STTEl
— — — 1LT28°81L 1LT428°81
—_ — — OvE19LST OvETIL'ST
— — — LI¥v6€ LIY'v6€
— — — S0TT6E S0TT6E
— — — 161°08T°L 161°08T°L
— — — 8E6°L6Y'T 8E6°L6YT
— — — £78°069°68 £¥8°069°68
— — — 861°620°8 861°520°8
— — — 1869 1869
(AvN) (€ Pa2) (z pPaa7) snduy (1 pPa EoL
AN[EA JISSY N wu..—ﬁ-u IqeArsqQ $J3SSY [ednudpy
J[qeAsdsqou) JOYJQ JUBIYIUSIS  J0J SIOHIBIA] FAOY
uﬂﬁom—_-ﬂwmw ur S —uauO-—O
Suis() SYUSWIAINSBIJA] IN[EA JIE g
Tywweel s
192420C
€10°6L8°TH1 $
janowry
a[qeanddy JoN
d[qednddy joN
€L9°SOETY 192%20C 192%20C — IV THE6E — TV THESE
(€10°6L8°TH1) (€ET0°6L8°TYT) (E10°6L8°TIHT) —
989%C €81 YLT €06 EVL YLTE06°EVT — TIVIVE6E — IV IPE6E
£TT°60S LTT60S LTT°60S — — — —
008°19€ 008°19€ 008°19€ — — — —
085°CS 085°TS 085S — — — —
10€201Y £69°081°¢ €69°081°¢ — 809°126 — 809°126
$00°0€T° €T LTE°00F6T LT600Y 61 LLO'6T8'E — LLO'6T8'E
96¥°SIT €1 96¥'STIEL 96t STIEL — — —
1L1428°81 €THY6E'ST €TV Y6E'ST 8YL6TY'E — 8YL6TYE
OvETOL'ST TR Y8 IL TR Y811 — 8IS9LTY — 8IS9LTY
117'v6€ 002°98C 002°98C — 11Z°801 — 112°801
S0TT6E S0T°T6E S0T°T6E — — — —
16108Z°L 198°Z1E'S 198°TIES - 0€€°L96°1 — 0E€°L96°T
8E6L6Y'T PO1E0H'T POIE0HT YLLYE — YLLY6
£78°069°68 10L°TTI°LY 10L°TTI°L9 TH1'89S°TT — T89S
861°520°8 SL1°988°C SLI‘988°S — €20°6E1T — £20°6E1°T
1869 — — — 1869 — 186°9
Bl JULINDUON] [B}0], _uuau_.-uvdm papLysaaun judaIn)) [Bj0], paRLIsey uﬂu.-‘:..U paypLgsaaun
JUILINDUON JUDLINDUON L)
s[qeoyddy 10N

(Ans1oATUN) 918G BIUIOJI[EY) 3y} Ul UOISN[OUI JO)

810T ‘0¢ dunf
UONBULIOJU] JOYI0)

NOILVANNOA ONSHYA .EmMEHZD ALVLS VINJOAI'TVD

SJUSUNSIAUT [BIO],

OTT Ut juaunsaauy
S10B1UOD JWOOUT I
‘sjususaaul Jofew 19YIQ
$9dA} JusunSIAUL SANBUIS}[R SO
(SLIAY Surpnjour) S)uSURSIAUL BISS [BAY
spuny 35pay.
(sdysisupred psyruny Supnjour) Ajinbs sjeang
ISTUSWISIAUT SATIRWISIY
sanuMoss Aymbg
sanunoas Amsean 'S
sonLnoss AousSe ‘SN
spuoq [ediouny
$31LINOSS paxoeq s5eSHO
Spuny Jo3IeA] ASUOJAT
Spury [enpy
spuoq ajeodio)
(4IVD pung juaunssau] Aoudfy [2o0-] BILIOJIER)) JO B

18107 °0€ dUN[ J& SHUIUIISIAUT Ul AYIIBINY IN[BA JIB ]

8102 ‘o€ dunp e SjuduISdAUL uﬂﬂh.-.—uﬁ.e-.— Pa3dLgSa B0,

punyg weiSoig sndwe)
JUSUISIAUI JUSWMOPUZ

10} PAJE[AI TQT OC JUNY JE SHUIW)ISIAUL JUILINDUOU PIJILSIY

0] PAJEIRL QTOT ‘0S AUNL JE SHUIUNSIAUT JUILIND PIILSIY

:8T0Z ‘0€ UL 38 SIUIWIIITE [BNJIBIJUOD JIPUN ANSIAIUY) Y} Aq P]oY SPudWIISIAUL

SIUGUISIAUL [RIO,
(Joqunu 9ATESAU SB 13)U3) SJUSWISIAUT JUSUIMOPUD SS
SJUOUNSOAUL [BJO],

DT Ul JusunsaAu]
S}OBIU0D SWIOdUT 1T
‘SjuauSIAUT Jofeur 1oy
sadA) JusunSIAUT SATRUISI[E 19YIQ)
(SIITY Surpnjour) SUSUNSIAUT 3JBISS [BSY
spury 58pafy
(sdrysioupred pajiwi] Suipnjour) &mbs sjeaug
:SJUSISIAUL SALRWIS)Y
sanunoss Ambg
sanuNo3s Ansean ‘S’
sanumoss Aouse ‘g
spueq [ediownjy
S91LIN0as paxyoeq a5eSHoN
Spuny 1B ASUO
Spury [eminjy
spuoq srelodio)
(4IvD puny jusunssAuy Lously [2207 BILIOJIR)) JO JBIS

18107 ‘0€ dunp e spudusaAui jo uomsodwo))

:8T0T ‘0¢ duny Ju spud[eAInba ysed pue yses pajpdLysay

§T

T

49



—_———

000°000C $ uonod Jud1INd Jo ou ‘suonesiqo 3qap uLd)-Suo
— uomod JuaLINg 1§53
000°000°C suoyesiqo 1Gop we}-5uUo] [e10L
000°000C sjuswAed wnwIUIW S1MNJ JO SN[EA JUISAIJ
(000°0€) 3591031 Sunuasaidal sjunowe ssa
000°0€0T 000°0€ 000000 000°0£0C 000°0€ 000000C — — — Ssjuouiked wnwiuIw 230,
000°010°C 000°0T 0007000 000°010° 000°01 000°000°T — — - 0z0T
000°0T 00002 — 000°02 000°0T — - - - $ 610C
:0¢ sunf Sulpus Jes
3sa1a3u] AluQ 3sa193uy AuQ redoung 3S3193u] A[uQ 3sa10yuy A[uQ edouag [EXEIT AuQ 35913)u] AuQ edouag
pug [eduLiy pue [edpuy pue [edpuLy
SUONESI|QO Jqp ULIA}-3U0] [610L suonesIqo 1qap SPUO( ANUIAI AIBI|IXNy
wL1d)-Suof JIYJ0 [V .
Inpay HE1qo 3qop wr-Suoy 9
3qeonddy joN :suoyesiqo ases] [eyde)) - syuowked osed] wnumunu aaMIng  §
000000C ¥86'L9 ¥86°L90°C (€9L°TY) T9L°6€ $86'690C — — $86'690C $ SINIIqeI] uua}-5uoy w0l
000000 — 000°0007T — — 000°000°C — — 000°000T 12u ‘suonesIiqo 3qop uuel-5uof felol,
000°000T - 000°000°C - — 000°000T — — 000°000T suone8iqo 1q3p uus}-Suof [elo],
000°000°C - 000°000°C - — 000°000T - - 000000 a]qeded S10N dteAL
(2dfy 4q 3517) :s19010
:suonesiqo 1q9p uws}-Suo|
— ¥86°L9 86°L9 (€9L°1%) T9L°6€ $86°69 — — $86°69 $ $95USSqE poresuadwoo panIooy
uonpod uon.iod 8107 ‘0€ dunp suondINPIY suonIppy (pare)saa) SUOIIBILISSB[IIY sjuauysnipe LT0Z ‘0 dunp
uridy-guoy JuaLIN) ueeg LT0T ‘0€ dunp porad Joug dueRg
uerg
:3[npayds ANANOR saIfIqel| Wa)-Suoy
1€0°LT $ uoyeziIOwrE pue uoyeroaidsp o],
1€0°LT $ sjesse [epdes 03 pajeja: ssusdxs uonezIoure pue uonerosidsq
8T0Z ‘0€ dunf papud 1eak Y 10y dsuadxd uoneziIOWE pue uonEIALdIp Jo reRQ 7'
8S1°6S — — (rsv°02) TI9'6L - - TI96L $ 10U “sjasse [epdeo [ej0],
(€€27eve) — - (1€0°L2) (z0z'915) — — (zoz'o1S) uonezIIowe/UoNeIdaIdp pare| [el0L,
(€€2°EVS) — (1€0°LD) (zoz'91S) — — (zoz'o1S) juswdinby
:Apadoud jeuosiag
‘uonezIpowE/uonRId31dep paje[nNooe SS9
16€°209 - — LLS 18°66S — — Y18°66S siasse [enides felo],
16€°209 - — LLS®S 18°66S — — ¥18°66S sjesse [epded sjqezipowe/s[qeroaidap [e10],
16£209 — — LLS™9 YI8°66S — — ¥I856S $ juswdmby
:Ayadoid Jeuosiag
:syasse [epdes sjqeziuoure/siqersaidaq
8102 ‘o€ dung dIMD suononpay suonippy (pare3sa) 1EISSEPIY pv LT0T ‘o€ dunp
reqd pajpdwoy LTOT ‘o€ dunp porsad Joug dueeyg
JO sIoysueIy oueeg

(Ayis10A1u() 93E3G BIUIOJI[RD) SU UL UOISN]OUL JOF)

810T “0€ dunf

uoyBULIOJUT 19YI0)
NOILVANNOA ONSTHA ‘ALISYTAINA ALVLS VINHOATTVD

18T0T ‘0€ duny Je s39sse [eyded jo uomisodwo)) [¢

50



YYLLISLY 1£0°2C TO0'LLI'ET 09L¥20Y LLO9TSY YL8TILST felof,
1€0°LT 1€0°LT — — — - uonezpIowre pue uoneroaidaq
L1T5L9'9 - £65°865°S — sLizLe 6V vOL sasuadxs osudiajus Amerxny
09LZ0% — — 09L420% — — sdyszejoyos pue sjueis juspmg
£29°50§ - £29°50S - - — poddns feuonmgsuy
VE8'BLE'9T — SSYYEED — LSLBSY'T £29°681°8 291A198 D[N
6917759 — LY0'91Z'E — ¥86°C8S 8EI'SYLT yoreasay
OL1°Z90°€El — Y8TTTS'L — 191°CI¥'1 v99°LTLY uononsuy

sasuadxa uonezIjI0WeE SIVNAIIS sduysmojpay sjousg saue[eg
Sugesado ejo], pue uonendtddq  toyjo pue sogddng  pue sdiysaejoydg
ssasuadxy SunesadQ jo suonedyisser) [panjeN
9[qeorddy 10N cuonisod jou Suruuidaq 03 pap.aodai (s) fpe powsad tord ay3 Jo Junowe pue dunjeu Ay Y,
3qeorddy JoN 67 'ON JudWANEIS SV 1opun SAI[IGEI] UOHEIPIWL uonnjjoq
81/L1X4 32 S[qeordde/paanbay jou - jueq Yo Ajeuonuajuy
9qeorddy 10N Anpqer (@3dO) s1euaq 3udwkojdursysod Joy3Q
TSTSO1°T siun Jusuodwod pajussaid A]1010sIp Woy AJISISAIUN) 9y} O} PUD-UL-SYLD)
9L8°06£°C $ swreiSoid 1010, pue “sjuess ‘sjoenuoo uo Sunjiom [auuosiad AJISISATU[) JO SSLIETES 10§ AJISISAIU[) O} SJUSWAR]
junowry

SAUI PIJRJA M SUOIJIESUBI],

PYSYSHELT $ pu3 - 3jqepuad 10§ pajLSAY - uonisod JON
mmwg&vnwwv Sjasse pajoLysal dus} 0 PIJe[or SJUSUISIAUT PSJOLIST Jo uoniog

- (3511 osesd) :syuaunsnfpe 19410

€10°6L8 T SJUSUNSIAUT JUSWMOPUT

pus - djqepuad 10 pajdLsY - uonisod 3au Jo uoneIE) 7'L

8S1°65 $ s39sse [e3ided ul JuaumysaAul JaN - uorpsod JoN
000°000°C sjesse [ejided 0} pajeyal Jou 3qap uus}-Suo]

(3s1] asead) :syusunsnipe 18yQO

(000°0007) uonod JUaLING 30 JoU ‘SuonESqo 1Gop uLe}-Suo]

8S1°6S $ uone1da1dop paje[nunose Jo jou ‘sjosse [ejde)

syasse [ejided ur Juaw)saAut 3N - uonisod Jou Jo uonENdE) [°L

:uonisod jau Jo uonEmMIE)

(Ayis19A1U() 51R}S BIWIOJIE) SY) U UCISNOUI JOF)
810 ‘0€ ung
UOHRULIOJU] 13Y10
NOILVANNOA ONSHYA ‘ALISHIAINA ALVIS VINJOAI'IVO

A

jas

(8

51



